
Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal Stewardship Board 
and Executive - Combined Meeting

Thursday, 16th August, 2018 in Committee Room 'D' (The Henry 
Bolingbroke Room) - County Hall, Preston, at 10.30 am

Agenda

Part I (Items that are Publicly Available)

1. Welcome and Apologies for Absence  

2. Minutes of the City Deal Executive meeting held on 19th February 2018  
(Pages 1 - 6)

3. Minutes of the City Deal Stewardship Board meeting held on 19th 
February 2018  (Pages 7 - 12)

4. Matters Arising  

5. Declaration of Interests  

Joint Stewardship Board and Executive Items (Chaired by Jim Carter)

6. New Project Proposal - Re-Imagining the Harris Project  (Pages 13 - 24)

7. Any Other Business  

8. Date of Next Meeting  
The next meeting of the Combined City Deal Executive and Stewardship 
Board will be held on Thursday 20th September 2018, 2pm in Committee 
Room 'B' – The Diamond Jubilee Room, County Hall, Preston.



- 2 -

9. Exclusion of the Press and Public  
The Board is asked to consider whether, under Section 100A(4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972, it considers that the public should be excluded from the 
meeting during consideration of the following items of business on the grounds 
that there would be a likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the 
appropriate paragraph of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972 as indicated against the heading to the item.

Part II (Items that are Private and Confidential)

Stewardship Board Items (Chaired by Danielle Gillespie)

10. Homes England Quarterly Monitoring Progress Update - Q4 2017/18 and 
Q1 2018/19  (Pages 25 - 42)

11. 2018-21 Homes England Business and Disposal Plan (BDP)  (Pages 43 - 
66)

Joint Stewardship Board and Executive Item (Chaired by Jim Carter)

12. Independent Review of the Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City 
Deal  
Confidential Presentation



Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal  Executive 

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 19th February, 2018 at 2.00 pm 
at the Committee Room 'D' (The Henry Bolingbroke Room) - County 
Hall, Preston

Present

Jim Carter (Chairman)

County Councillor Geoff Driver CBE
Councillor Peter Mullineaux

Councillor Peter Rankin
Mark Rawstron
Stuart Sage

In Attendance

County Councillor Michael Green, Lancashire County Council
Councillor Peter Moss, Preston City Council
Heather McManus, Chief Executive, South Ribble Borough Council
Lorraine Norris, Chief Executive, Preston City Council
Angie Ridgwell, Chief Executive, Lancashire County Council
Jo Ainsworth, Finance Advisor, Lancashire County Council
Nicola Elsworth, Homes England
Marcus Hudson, Development Management, Lancashire County Council
Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development and Planning, Lancashire County Council
Andy Milroy, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Lancashire County Council
Julie Musesogla, Homes England
Sarah Parry, City Deal Programme Manager, Lancashire County Council
Ginette Unsworth, Head of Communications, Lancashire County Council

1.  Welcome and Apologies for Absence

The Chairman, Jim Carter, welcomed all to the meeting, in particular Nicola 
Elsworth and Julie Musesoglu from Homes England.

Apologies for absence were presented and noted from Karl Tupling.  Stuart Sage 
was formally nominated as the Homes England representative for the City Deal 
Stewardship Board.

2.  Minutes of the City Deal Executive meeting held on 29th November 2017

Resolved:  That the minutes of the City Deal Executive meeting held on 29th 
November 2017 be approved as an accurate record for signing by the Chairman.

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



3.  Minutes of the City Deal Stewardship Board meeting held on 29th November 
2017

Resolved:  That the minutes of the City Deal Stewardship Board meeting held on 
29th November 2017 be approved as an accurate record for signing by the 
Chairman.

4.  Matters Arising

Councillor Rankin asked when the City Transport Plan would return to City Deal 
Members for consideration.  It was confirmed that the Plan will be submitted to 
the June 2018 City Deal meetings for consideration.

5.  Declarations of Interest

None

6.  Homes England Quarterly Monitoring Progress Update – Q3 2017/18

Stuart Sage and Julie Musesoglu (both Homes England) presented a report 
(circulated) which provided a Quarterly Monitoring Update for Quarter 3 – 2017 / 
18 with regard to Homes England sites.

It was reported that overall positive progress is being made across the portfolio.  
The 35 completions last quarter were significantly higher than the quarterly 
average.  Other particular successes included:

 Altcar Lane – a preferred developer was selected and the conditional 
contract is expected to be in place by March 2018.

 Whittingham – the consultant procurement has completed and work is now 
underway on the development of masterplan options and the planning 
strategy.

Housing activity is expected to increase over the course of the coming 12 months 
with a start on site expected at Altcar Lane and Cottam Hall Phase 3.  Marketing 
will also get underway shortly for Croston Road North Phase 1.

Homes England are on track to pay the £37.5m grant by 2022/23.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the contents 
of the report and the progress made.

7.  Implementation Update - 2017/18 Quarter 3 (Sept-Dec 2017)

Page 2



Sarah Parry, City Deal Programme Manager, Lancashire County Council, 
presented a report (circulated) which provided City Deal Members with a quarterly 
monitoring update for the period September 2017 to December 2017.

It was reported that overall good progress continues to be made on delivering the 
schemes against the agreed milestones.  Of the 48 Schemes in the current 
Business and Delivery Plan, 21 are progressing as planned, 10 schemes have 
completed and 12 schemes are under review as their delivery programme is not 
yet confirmed.  5 schemes have been highlighted amber due to the potential risk 
of not meeting their milestones going forward:

 Penwortham Bypass – Scheme completion date 3 months later than 
previously reported following the detailed design exercise, now forecast for 
Q4 2019/20.

 Guild Wheel Upgrade Link – Phase 1 - Bluebell Way – revised scheme 
being prepared due to affordability.

 Grimsargh Green – Discussions ongoing regarding maintenance of the 
playing pitch, awaiting outcome for decision

 Preston Bus Station On Site Highways works – uncertainty around 
programme, 

 Cuerden Strategic Site Road Infrastructure – planning, legal and 
commercial reasons have impacted on the programme, start on site now 
anticipated April 2018.

Updates were also provided on progress at the Pickerings Farm and Whittingham 
Hospital development sites, being two of the most complex and valuable sites in 
the City Deal.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the Quarter 3 
(September 2017 – December 2017) Implementation Update as presented.

8.  Finance Update - 2017/18 Quarter 3 (Sept-Dec 2017)

Jo Ainsworth, Finance Advisor, Lancashire County Council presented a report 
(circulated) which provided an update on the City Deal Infrastructure Delivery 
Fund (IDF) during Quarter 3 September to December 2017.

It was reported that the current position of the IDF is a projected surplus over the 
life of the deal of £3.675m.  This represents a small increase from the previously 
reported position at September 2017, and is based on the assumption that the 
required actions relating to the £75.150m North West Preston Roads Programme 
(NWPRP), following the NWPRP funding decision, are agreed.  To not do so 
would result in the IDF model being over spent by £71.475m which would breach 
the agreed funding position.

In addition, it was reported that other developer contributions of £17.584m still 
need to be secured, additionally circa £15m currently secured is now at risk 
following the need for revision of the planning application for the Whittingham 
Hospital site.  The total risk of reductions to income was therefore reported as 
circa £32.5m.

Page 3



Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board:

(i) Noted the Quarter 3 Finance Update and Dashboard as presented; and

(ii) Noted the key risks and issues going forward.

9.  Preston Western Distributor (including Cottam Link Road) and East West 
Link Road

Marcus Hudson, Development Management, Lancashire County Council 
presented a report (circulated) regarding Preston Western Distributor (including 
Cottam Link Road) and the East West Link Road.

It was reported that several key milestones have been reached since the City 
Deal Executive and Stewardship Board met in late November 2017, firstly with 
the production of a second independent cost verification which confirmed the 
financial position reported at the November meeting as a reliable basis for 
subsequent key decisions.

At its meeting on 10th January 2018, the Transport for Lancashire Committee 
recommended that the LEP Board grant the scheme Conditional Approval, which 
the LEP Board did at its meeting on 30th January 2018.  With this conditional 
funding approval confirmed, the County Council's Cabinet was able to agree, a its 
meeting on 1st February 2018, to make and advertise Side Roads and 
Compulsory Purchase Orders for land and rights, as well as changes to the 
existing highway network and two bridge schemes that will cross the Lancaster 
Canal and the Millennium Ribble Link.

The report also presented a draft programme of Key Milestones for 2018/19 and 
2019/20 for City Deal Executive approval.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the report as 
presented.

The City Deal Executive approved the draft programme of Key Milestones for 
2018/19 and 2019/20 as presented. 

10.  City Deal Development Sites Overview

Sarah Parry presented a report (circulated) which provided City Deal Members 
with an overview of the City Deal Development Sites.

It was reported that it was initially thought that the review of hosing sites could be 
undertaken relatively quickly, but following an initial scoping of the work, officers 
are requesting more time to properly assess each of the development sites in the 
programme against baseline forecasts and understand what is going on at the 
operational / commercial level.  By doing this, more meaningful information will be 
provided for the City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board in relation to the 

Page 4



consequential impact on the delivery and funding profile for City Deal.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board approved that a 
detailed report on the delivery of the housing sites be brought to the City Deal 
Executive and Stewardship Board meeting to be held in June 2018.

11.  City Deal Review

Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development and Planning, Lancashire 
County Council presented a report (circulated) which updated the Executive and 
Stewardship Board on the City Deal Review.

It was reported that since the last meeting of the Executive and Stewardship 
Board a detailed consultants brief outlining the scope of the review, timeline for 
completion and procurement process for selecting consultants is about to 
commence with a view to them starting work on the project by mid-March.

A response from Government as to their level of engagement in the review is 
awaited.

The report also confirmed that the findings and recommendations of the 
previously completed Resources Review, will be fed in and reported as part of 
this wider City Deal Review.  

It is intended that the successful consultant reports to the meeting of the 
Executive and Stewardship Board scheduled for June 2018.  The Review Group 
will oversee the appointment of the consultants and members of the City Deal 
Executive and Stewardship Board will be advised as to who has been appointed 
in due course. 

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board approved the City 
Deal Review process as presented and noted that the successful consultant 
would report to the next meeting of the Executive and Stewardship Board 
scheduled for June 2018.

12.  Invest Central Lancashire

Ginette Unsworth, Head of Service Communications, Lancashire County Council 
provided an update on the "Invest Central Lancashire" prospectus launch.  It was 
noted the document was in the process of being finalised ahead of the launch on 
1st March 2018. 

The event on 1st March 2018 will enable developers, investors, property 
professionals and policy makers drawn from across the North to gather for a 
special inward investment conference focussing on the huge investment potential 
offered by Preston, South Ribble and the wider Central Lancashire area.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the update on 
the Invest Central Lancashire Prospectus and that it will launch on 1st March 2018 

Page 5



at the Inward Investment Conference.

13.  Chairman's Report to the LEP

The Chairman reported that key topics would be reported to the LEP Board, 
including:

 The launch of the Invest Central Lancashire Prospectus.
 Housing delivery progress.
 City Deal Review progress.
 Infrastructure development, in particular, key road schemes.

14.  Any Other Business

It was noted under Any Other Business that it was the last meeting of a number 
of City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board members, namely Stuart Sage 
(Homes England), Councillor Peter Rankin (Leader of Preston City Council) and 
Lorraine Norris (Chief Executive of Preston City Council).

The Chairman, endorsed by both the City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board 
placed on record their thanks for all their hard work on City Deal and wished them 
all well for the future.

15.  Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next Combined City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board 
meeting was scheduled to be held on Thursday 28th June 2018 at 2pm, County 
Hall, Preston.  Although it was reported that this time slot now clashed with 
Preston City Council's Full Council meeting and may therefore be moved if 
possible.

Page 6



Preston, South Ribble and Lancashire City Deal Stewardship Board 

Minutes of the Meeting held on Monday, 19th February, 2018 at 2.00 pm 
at the Committee Room 'D' (The Henry Bolingbroke Room) - County 
Hall, Preston

Present

Stuart Sage (Chairman)

Jim Carter
Lorraine Norris

Heather McManus
Angie Ridgwell

In Attendance

County Councillor Geoff Driver CBE, Leader, Lancashire County Council
Councillor Peter Mullineaux, Leader, South Ribble Borough Council
Councillor Peter Rankin, Leader, Preston City Council
Mark Rawstron, LEP Director
County Councillor Michael Green, Lancashire County Council
Councillor Peter Moss, Preston City Council
Jo Ainsworth, Finance Advisor, Lancashire County Council
Nicola Elsworth, Homes England
Marcus Hudson, Development Management, Lancashire County Council
Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development and Planning, Lancashire County Council
Andy Milroy, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Lancashire County Council
Julie Musesogla, Homes England
Sarah Parry, City Deal Programme Manager, Lancashire County Council
Ginette Unsworth, Head of Communications, Lancashire County Council

1.  Welcome and Apologies for Absence

The Chairman, Jim Carter, welcomed all to the meeting, in particular Nicola 
Elsworth and Julie Musesoglu from Homes England.

Apologies for absence were presented and noted from Karl Tupling.  Stuart Sage 
was formally nominated as the Homes England representative for the City Deal 
Stewardship Board.

2.  Minutes of the City Deal Executive meeting held on 29th November 2017

Resolved:  That the minutes of the City Deal Executive meeting held on 29th 
November 2017 be approved as an accurate record for signing by the Chairman.

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



3.  Minutes of the City Deal Stewardship Board meeting held on 29th November 
2017

Resolved:  That the minutes of the City Deal Stewardship Board meeting held on 
29th November 2017 be approved as an accurate record for signing by the 
Chairman.

4.  Matters Arising

Councillor Rankin asked when the City Transport Plan would return to City Deal 
Members for consideration.  It was confirmed that the Plan will be submitted to 
the June 2018 City Deal meetings for consideration.

5.  Declarations of Interest

None

6.  Homes England Quarterly Monitoring Progress Update – Q3 2017/18

Stuart Sage and Julie Musesoglu (both Homes England) presented a report 
(circulated) which provided a Quarterly Monitoring Update for Quarter 3 – 2017 / 
18 with regard to Homes England sites.

It was reported that overall positive progress is being made across the portfolio.  
The 35 completions last quarter were significantly higher than the quarterly 
average.  Other particular successes included:

 Altcar Lane – a preferred developer was selected and the conditional 
contract is expected to be in place by March 2018.

 Whittingham – the consultant procurement has completed and work is now 
underway on the development of masterplan options and the planning 
strategy.

Housing activity is expected to increase over the course of the coming 12 months 
with a start on site expected at Altcar Lane and Cottam Hall Phase 3.  Marketing 
will also get underway shortly for Croston Road North Phase 1.

Homes England are on track to pay the £37.5m grant by 2022/23.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the contents 
of the report and the progress made.

7.  Implementation Update - 2017/18 Quarter 3 (Sept-Dec 2017)

Page 8



Sarah Parry, City Deal Programme Manager, Lancashire County Council, 
presented a report (circulated) which provided City Deal Members with a quarterly 
monitoring update for the period September 2017 to December 2017.

It was reported that overall good progress continues to be made on delivering the 
schemes against the agreed milestones.  Of the 48 Schemes in the current 
Business and Delivery Plan, 21 are progressing as planned, 10 schemes have 
completed and 12 schemes are under review as their delivery programme is not 
yet confirmed.  5 schemes have been highlighted amber due to the potential risk 
of not meeting their milestones going forward:

 Penwortham Bypass – Scheme completion date 3 months later than 
previously reported following the detailed design exercise, now forecast for 
Q4 2019/20.

 Guild Wheel Upgrade Link – Phase 1 - Bluebell Way – revised scheme 
being prepared due to affordability.

 Grimsargh Green – Discussions ongoing regarding maintenance of the 
playing pitch, awaiting outcome for decision

 Preston Bus Station On Site Highways works – uncertainty around 
programme, 

 Cuerden Strategic Site Road Infrastructure – planning, legal and 
commercial reasons have impacted on the programme, start on site now 
anticipated April 2018.

Updates were also provided on progress at the Pickerings Farm and Whittingham 
Hospital development sites, being two of the most complex and valuable sites in 
the City Deal.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the Quarter 3 
(September 2017 – December 2017) Implementation Update as presented.

8.  Finance Update - 2017/18 Quarter 3 (Sept-Dec 2017)

Jo Ainsworth, Finance Advisor, Lancashire County Council presented a report 
(circulated) which provided an update on the City Deal Infrastructure Delivery 
Fund (IDF) during Quarter 3 September to December 2017.

It was reported that the current position of the IDF is a projected surplus over the 
life of the deal of £3.675m.  This represents a small increase from the previously 
reported position at September 2017, and is based on the assumption that the 
required actions relating to the £75.150m North West Preston Roads Programme 
(NWPRP), following the NWPRP funding decision, are agreed.  To not do so 
would result in the IDF model being over spent by £71.475m which would breach 
the agreed funding position.

In addition, it was reported that other developer contributions of £17.584m still 
need to be secured, additionally circa £15m currently secured is now at risk 
following the need for revision of the planning application for the Whittingham 
Hospital site.  The total risk of reductions to income was therefore reported as 
circa £32.5m.

Page 9



Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board:

(i) Noted the Quarter 3 Finance Update and Dashboard as presented; and

(ii) Noted the key risks and issues going forward.

9.  Preston Western Distributor (including Cottam Link Road) and East West 
Link Road

Marcus Hudson, Development Management, Lancashire County Council 
presented a report (circulated) regarding Preston Western Distributor (including 
Cottam Link Road) and the East West Link Road.

It was reported that several key milestones have been reached since the City 
Deal Executive and Stewardship Board met in late November 2017, firstly with 
the production of a second independent cost verification which confirmed the 
financial position reported at the November meeting as a reliable basis for 
subsequent key decisions.

At its meeting on 10th January 2018, the Transport for Lancashire Committee 
recommended that the LEP Board grant the scheme Conditional Approval, which 
the LEP Board did at its meeting on 30th January 2018.  With this conditional 
funding approval confirmed, the County Council's Cabinet was able to agree, a its 
meeting on 1st February 2018, to make and advertise Side Roads and 
Compulsory Purchase Orders for land and rights, as well as changes to the 
existing highway network and two bridge schemes that will cross the Lancaster 
Canal and the Millennium Ribble Link.

The report also presented a draft programme of Key Milestones for 2018/19 and 
2019/20 for City Deal Executive approval.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the report as 
presented.

10.  City Deal Development Sites Overview

Sarah Parry presented a report (circulated) which provided City Deal Members 
with an overview of the City Deal Development Sites.

It was reported that it was initially thought that the review of hosing sites could be 
undertaken relatively quickly, but following an initial scoping of the work, officers 
are requesting more time to properly assess each of the development sites in the 
programme against baseline forecasts and understand what is going on at the 
operational / commercial level.  By doing this, more meaningful information will be 
provided for the City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board in relation to the 
consequential impact on the delivery and funding profile for City Deal.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board approved that a 
detailed report on the delivery of the housing sites be brought to the City Deal 
Executive and Stewardship Board meeting to be held in June 2018.

Page 10



11.  City Deal Review

Martin Kelly, Director of Economic Development and Planning, Lancashire 
County Council presented a report (circulated) which updated the Executive and 
Stewardship Board on the City Deal Review.

It was reported that since the last meeting of the Executive and Stewardship 
Board a detailed consultants brief outlining the scope of the review, timeline for 
completion and procurement process for selecting consultants is about to 
commence with a view to them starting work on the project by mid-March.

A response from Government as to their level of engagement in the review is 
awaited.

The report also confirmed that the findings and recommendations of the 
previously completed Resources Review, will be fed in and reported as part of 
this wider City Deal Review.  

It is intended that the successful consultant reports to the meeting of the 
Executive and Stewardship Board scheduled for June 2018.  The Review Group 
will oversee the appointment of the consultants and members of the City Deal 
Executive and Stewardship Board will be advised as to who has been appointed 
in due course. 

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board approved the City 
Deal Review process as presented and noted that the successful consultant 
would report to the next meeting of the Executive and Stewardship Board 
scheduled for June 2018.

12.  Invest Central Lancashire

Ginette Unsworth, Head of Service Communications, Lancashire County Council 
provided an update on the "Invest Central Lancashire" prospectus launch.  It was 
noted the document was in the process of being finalised ahead of the launch on 
1st March 2018. 

The event on 1st March 2018 will enable developers, investors, property 
professionals and policy makers drawn from across the North to gather for a 
special inward investment conference focussing on the huge investment potential 
offered by Preston, South Ribble and the wider Central Lancashire area.

Resolved:  The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board noted the update on 
the Invest Central Lancashire Prospectus and that it will launch on 1st March 2018 
at the Inward Investment Conference.

13.  Chairman's Report to the LEP

The Chairman reported that key topics would be reported to the LEP Board, 
including:

Page 11



 The launch of the Invest Central Lancashire Prospectus.
 Housing delivery progress.
 City Deal Review progress.
 Infrastructure development, in particular, key road schemes.

14.  Any Other Business

It was noted under Any Other Business that it was the last meeting of a number 
of City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board members, namely Stuart Sage 
(Homes England), Councillor Peter Rankin (Leader of Preston City Council) and 
Lorraine Norris (Chief Executive of Preston City Council).

The Chairman, endorsed by both the City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board 
placed on record their thanks for all their hard work on City Deal and wished them 
all well for the future.

15.  Date of Next Meeting

It was noted that the next Combined City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board 
meeting was scheduled to be held on Thursday 28th June 2018 at 2pm, County 
Hall, Preston.  Although it was reported that this time slot now clashed with 
Preston City Council's Full Council meeting and may therefore be moved if 
possible.

Page 12



CITY DEAL EXECUTIVE AND STEWARDSHIP BOARD

Private and Confidential: No

Date: Thursday, 16 August 2018

New Project Proposal - Re-Imagining the Harris Project
(Appendix 'A' refers)

Report Author: 
Jon Finch, Head of Culture (Project Leader – Re-Imagining the Harris)
Preston City Council, Tel: 01772 905407, email: j.r.finch@preston.gov.uk

Executive Summary

Preston City Council is seeking financial support from the City Deal in order to enable 
a Heritage Lottery Fund Stage 1 application to be submitted which will enable a 
transformative capital project of £10.5 million for the Harris to be delivered.  The 
project has been scoped and high level designs are being worked up.  Funding has 
been secured from Preston City Council and two local heritage trusts.  A Cabinet 
paper is going to the Lancashire County Council Cabinet on 9th August 2018 to 
request £1m funding.
 
This proposal requests the City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board to consider 
allocating £1 million from the Community Infrastructure Fund towards the project.  It 
is acknowledged that to draw down significant sums of funding in advance of income 
being received could cause potential cash flow difficulties for the City Deal and 
Lancashire County Council as Accountable Body. It is therefore proposed that until 
the Community Infrastructure Fund is adequately funded, the City Council foregoes 
community provision payments due, to the equivalent amount, to ease the cash flow 
position. The City Council would request a reimbursement over the life cycle of the 
City Deal and it is requested that this is guaranteed through a legally binding 
agreement.

The application for Heritage Lottery Funding is for £4.5 million and needs to be 
submitted on 16th August 2018. This report highlights that the project is on track to 
achieve the Re-Imagining the Harris Programme Board’s agreed milestones within 
the planning phase of the total Programme schedule of work.

This report provides an update on progress to date from the commencement of the 
Re-Imagining of the Harris Capital project, February 2018 to the end of July 2018.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6

mailto:j.r.finch@preston.gov.uk


Recommendation

The City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board is asked to approve the funding 
proposal as outlined above to enable the project to move forward as planned.  
 

Background and Advice 

The original proposal (May 2018) is attached at Appendix 'A' and provides 
information on what the project is planning to achieve.  A summary is provided 
below:-

Preston City Council and Lancashire County Council have a shared ambition to 
maximise the potential offered by the iconic Harris Museum, Art Gallery and Library 
in Preston.  The Councils want to reposition the Harris, ensuring that it becomes a 
cultural and community hub for the County.  Both Councils have worked together 
since 2015 to set up the Re-Imagining the Harris partnership.  

The aim is to create a sustainable and democratic high quality hub at the Harris, 
which is constantly refreshed and provides a community led museum, art gallery, 
library services and cultural activities which are delivered in a truly joined up way.  

The unique opportunities provided by the Harris, as an iconic Grade 1 listed building 
and civic focal point for the City, housing a library, museum and art gallery, with an 
excellent range of collections need to be effectively utilised.  The project will build on 
the concepts of a 21st century museum and library creating an animated cultural and 
community hub for the people of Preston with a diversified range of income sources.  
Support from City Deal would help enable the Harris to unlock further investment 
from funders such as the Heritage Lottery Fund to deliver a circa £10million scheme 
which would enable the Harris to become a focal point for the wider regeneration of 
Preston’s city centre; working in partnership with the University of Central Lancashire 
to create a flagship city centre presence for the University as part of the 
redevelopment. 

The Harris must also become a more sustainable service.  At a time when the 
Councils are facing considerable financial challenges, it is significant that both have 
identified the Harris as a strategic priority and ring-fenced capital investment.  The 
project will enable the Harris to develop its commercial services, including improved 
shop, café and facilities for corporate events and business meetings.  

UPDATE ON KEY IMPLEMENTATION ISSUES

The table below sets out the more significant issues that are being prioritised in the 
Programme in order to appropriately manage risk. Some of the issues have previously 
been reported on and an update on the current position is provided.

Page 14



List of Background Papers

Paper Date Contact/Tel

None

Issues and 
Risks

Value to the 
Programme

Latest Position

Securing the 
necessary 
funding to deliver 
the project

Ensuring the 
project is 
delivered within 
the identified 
budget

Objections to the 
planned changes 
by the local 
community
Structural 
integrity of 
existing building 
structure 
requiring greater 
review than 
expected causing 
delays to the 
scheme and a re-
think to the 
design.

 Funding already secured from local 
partners, other bids in place and 
Fundraising Strategy in final draft.

 A detailed budget estimate is being 
produced based on the specific scheme 
proposals in relation to alterations and new 
work and built up from specific detailed 
reports and schedules previously 
commissioned relating to the scope and 
costs of specific essential repairs and 
maintenance items.

 Consultation with local communities 
already started

 Structural surveys have already taken place 
and have identified the main areas of 
concern.

Page 15



Reason for inclusion in Part II, if appropriate 

N/A

Page 16



Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

For new scheme proposals (not identified in the business plan) 
To be completed for all new City Deal schemes (not currently in the Annual Business and Delivery Plan)

Purpose of this form: 

To provide sufficient information to enable the Programme Board and City Deal Executive to make a 
decision as to whether to approve the scheme in principle and authorise progression to the next stage of 
project development including the development of a full Pid to be approved by IDSG.

1. Scheme Overview

To be completed by the applicant
1.1 Name of scheme: Re-Imagining the Harris Project

1.2 City Deal Zone Zone 3 - Preston City Centre

1.3 Scheme type: Community Infrastructure

1.4 Contact for more information: Nigel Roberts 01772 906594 n.roberts@preston.gov.uk 
1.5 Grid reference: SD5429SW
1.6 Is a site map available Yes
1.7 Funding type – is the scheme: Capital (tick box)
1.8 Scheme description:

 

The Grade I listed Harris Museum, Art Gallery & Library opened in 
1893 and was the result of a bequest by Preston lawyer Edmund 
Robert Harris. The Harris is an iconic late 19th century building and 
important Grade 1 listed landmark, it is at the historic core of 
Preston, now designated as the Market Place Conservation Area. 

For many local people and visitors The Harris represents Preston. 
Central to the city’s identity, it is the major landmark, fronting the 
principal public square and a focus for civic life. However, the Harris 
is much more than a monumental building – it must be a centre for 
Preston’s cultural and social life; a source of inspiration, pride and 
creativity – and of enjoyment.

The building is owned by Preston City Council, which has also 
delivered the museum and art gallery service since local government 
reorganisation in 1972. The Harris library is one of the largest and 
busiest sites in the Lancashire library service. We offer services 
including lending, IT access, employment courses and community 
history services; and occupies 40% of the building and is delivered by 
Lancashire County Council.

The Harris at a transformational point. The Victorian founders’ vision 
was that it would be the focus of culture, arts and learning, an 
embodiment of aspirations in late 19th century Preston. Inspired by 
those early ambitions, whilst responding to the needs of the people 
of the city and the region for the next generation, the two Councils 
are working in partnership to bring the museum and library together 
and developing improved community-led approaches.  There is a 
compelling new vision, rooted in our Victorian origins and in Preston 
and Lancashire as centres of innovation and making: Joyful Making. 
This will provide the inspiration for the capital development.
The aim is to create a democratic, high quality offer, with constantly 

Appendix 'A'

Page 17

mailto:n.roberts@preston.gov.uk


Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

refreshed and community led museum, art gallery and library 
services as well as cultural activities delivered in a genuinely joined 
up way. It will utilise the unique opportunities provided by the Harris, 
as an iconic Grade 1 listed building and civic focal point for the city, 
with outstanding collections. It will build on the concepts of a 21st 
century museum and library, creating an animated cultural and 
community hub for the people of Preston and Lancashire. 

Support from City Deal would help enable the Harris to unlock 
further investment from funders such as the Heritage Lottery Fund to 
deliver a c£10million scheme which would enable the Harris to 
become a focal point for the wider regeneration of Preston’s city 
centre; working in partnership with the University of Central 
Lancashire to create a flagship city centre presence for the University 
as part of the redevelopment. 

The Harris must also become a more sustainable service.  At a time 
when the Councils are facing considerable financial challenges, it is 
significant that both have identified the Harris as a strategic priority 
and ring-fenced capital investment.  The project will enable the Harris 
to develop its commercial services, including improved shop, café 
and facilities for corporate events and business meetings.  

A City Deal supported project would build on the progress we have 
made since the Re-imagining the Harris project began in 2015. 

It would deliver phase 1 of the Harris Masterplan, and is likely to 
focus on:

- Redeveloping, refurbishing and substantially re-fitting the 
ground and first floor and providing an integrated heritage, 
arts and library service;

- Improving access;
- Delivering essential conservation and repair works to the 

building fabric;
- Improving services infrastructure within the basement;
- Resolving vertical circulation challenges.

The project will create high quality facilities enabling visitors to 
engage with heritage and art, as well as providing multiple 
opportunities for communities, particularly young people, to develop 
skills through a makerspace and digital learning centre that draw 
inspiration from the heritage of the Harris.  Inspired by our values of 
creativity, democracy, animation and permeability, we will use the 
collections to fundamentally reposition the Harris. This will make a 
significant contribution to the economic revival of Preston by 
generating greater visitor numbers, as well as enabling more people 
to engage with Preston’s heritage.  The project will also create high 
quality secondary income opportunities, based on a clear 
understanding of local markets.

1.9 Why is the scheme needed and 
what benefits will it bring?

The Harris opened in 1893 and currently attracts almost 1000 people 
a day – 350,000 per year.  It is one of the leading museums and 
galleries in the North West, with a national reputation for its art, 

Page 18



Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

fashion and history collections and exhibitions, and is the location of 
Lancashire’s biggest and busiest library service.  However, at 125 
years old, the Harris is in need of significant investment to maximise 
its potential as a tourist destination to support the local economy, 
and as a community infrastructure hub to provide the services that 
Preston people need and want in the 21st century. 

Preston:  Preston is in need of improved services for its residents 
now – many are young and in need of opportunities and help with 
their education and career ambitions.  To address this, Lancashire 
County and Preston City Councils have made concerted efforts to 
reposition the City, in partnership with the University of Central 
Lancashire, UCLan.  

UCLan and Preston City Council are keen to encourage creative 
graduates to stay and contribute to the economy by starting small 
businesses or joining local SMEs.  UCLan is the leading UK university 
for incubated start-up businesses and their planned studio spaces 
and creative opportunities will provide opportunities for young 
people, but more needs to be done.

The cultural, heritage and creative sector across the City and County 
is at a cross roads.  Whilst the creative sector is rightly acknowledged 
as innovative and community focused, it is also recognised as 
disparate, un-coordinated and with few centres of excellence.  That 
needs to change.

Changing City Centres:  Todays cultural, technological and societal 
revolution requires City Centres to reinvent themselves and offer 
more than ever before.  Expectations are high – people want to learn, 
develop, relax, enjoy and be entertained in new and exciting ways.

Major multi-million pound investment in Preston is providing just 
that – a whole new range of things to do, see and enjoy.  This is 
fantastic for Preston – but a challenge to the Harris.  In a re-energised 
and vibrant City Centre the Harris simply cannot afford to offer more 
of the same.  It has to raise its game, move with the times and indeed 
lead the times.  To be a place that truly inspires, is warm, welcoming, 
inviting and sets the standard for Preston City Centre in a way truly 
fitting for an historic and cultural icon.

In changing its offer, the Harris also needs to fulfil a wider regional 
role.  Regarded in artistic and educational circles as a true Northern 
gem, it is also something of a hidden gem when compared to 
counterparts in Liverpool, Manchester and Leeds.  This once in a 
generation investment will enable the Harris to play this wider role - 
to have more quality exhibition space and footfall so more cutting 
edge, informative and thought provoking exhibitions can be 
displayed.  To reciprocate and allow more of the Harris’s fabulous 
collections to be on display around the country - and even the world.  
To be a true seat of learning and technological innovation for another 
125 years and beyond.

Page 19



Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

Complementary Investment:  Around the Harris in central Preston 
are new projects, fundamental to the creation of an economically 
and socially powerful City Centre - the Guild Hall Theatre and Concert 
Venue, the Youth Zone, the Old Post Office boutique hotel, 
contemporary Markets, City Bus Station and Transport Hub, and the 
LEP plans to build over 17,000 new homes and create more than 
20,000 new jobs.  

Together, these constitute the largest investment Preston has had in 
living memory - and the Harris is at the heart of them.  It is important 
that to take advantage of these opportunities now and not be left 
behind.

Local Authority Co-operation:  Lancashire County Council and 
Preston City Council have both reserved funding of £2 million for the 
project but will not be able to hold on to it indefinitely.  The two 
Councils are working in effective partnership for the benefit of the 
Harris for the first time since local government reorganisation in the 
1970s so this is an opportunity that must not be missed.

Commercial Opportunity:  Long term challenges in funding for local 
authorities mean it is critical the Harris generates income to make 
itself sustainable as soon as possible.  The re-imagining the Harris 
project will make this happen.  The configuration of the building 
means it is impossible to develop effective commercial opportunities 
– and without these, there is a threat to the heritage of the building 
and collections as there will inevitably be less money to spend 
protecting them.  The revisioned project directly addresses this.

Conclusion:  The HLF investment project is about building a new 
future and new legacy for the Harris - one that is more innovative 
and business like.  Given the new financial reality of major funders 
Preston City and Lancashire County Councils, it is vital that the Harris 
forges ahead in a new direction with a new bold model of service 
delivery that is more flexible, more innovative and more financially 
secure and sustainable, with a wider range of revenue sources and 
income streams.

1.11 How was the need for the 
scheme identified?

Development of the Re-Imagining the Harris Project
In 2015 Preston City Council and Lancashire County Council 
recognised that the Harris needed change and investment.  Despite 
being a cultural and community focal point the Harris was showing 
significant signs of wear and tear, and it was acknowledged that 
having teams from different councils delivering services within the 
building was not offering optimal efficiency and customer service.

The Councils were also aware that the ongoing regeneration of the 
city centre whilst crucial for the success of Preston, may also result in 
the Harris being left behind, therefore it became clear that a 
repositioning of the Harris was needed.

Sp PCC and LCC established the 'Re-Imagining the Harris' project in 

Page 20



Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

2015, sharing the costs of a Project Leader and securing support from 
Arts Council England (ACE).

The project has four priorities which are to:
- Develop a new vision for the Harris as an arts and cultural 

centre for the community and an important regional visitor 
destination centre;

- Prepare a business case to support a new joint staffing 
structure;

- Prepare a major bid for HLF and other funds to deliver the 
established vision;

- Exploit commercial opportunities and efficiency savings to 
reduce the Councils revenue costs.

Stakeholder and Community consultation
We have actively listened to and learned from all sections of our 
community and to everyone with a stake in the Harris. We have used 
traditional and innovative means of consultation and engagement to 
secure as wide a range of feedback as possible. The Harris 
Transformers and Talk to Me projects in particular provided
unique insight.

The consultation has involved more than 1,500 people and a variety 
of different methods including:
- Focus groups;
- On-line consultation;
- Street interviews;
- Displays in the Harris and local libraries;
- Working with local press;
- Using other creative agencies;
- Use of specially created groups;
- Comments via social media

The passion and the pride people of Preston have for the Harris is 
clear.  There are a number of messages that have been articulated 
clearly and repeatedly about the need for change at the Harris:
• A desire for greater animation and regular refreshment of the offer;
• Opening up of the Harris to be a more welcoming place where 
people feel safe and comfortable;
• Creativity, making and innovation in the Harris are crucial, as is 
supporting the local creative sector;
• The Harris should be democratic, enabling local communities to 
take the lead and providing them with a voice;
• The Harris, and its offer, should be seamless, breaking down 
barriers between the museum, library
and gallery, as well as the city beyond;
• The need to focus on young people, enhancing the offer and appeal 
to them as it is currently limited;
• There is a clear desire for the Harris to focus on and celebrate 
Preston and Lancashire;
• The need to utilise technology, and create a more engaging 
environment. 

Page 21



Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

Analysis of cultural infrastructure in other towns and cities
The two Councils and the Project Leader analysed other towns and 
cities of a similar scale and size to Preston.  It was clear that the 
majority had targeted investments and improvements in their 
cultural and community infrastructure as part of their regeneration 
and growth of their urban centres.  As the only major cultural and 
community hub in Preston it is therefore vital to ensure the Harris 
plays a key part in the development of the city (Comparators include 
Chester - £33m invested in Chester Storyhouse;  Blackpool - £13m on 
new Blackpool museum).

Page 22



Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

2. Scheme benefits – strategic and local fit

2.1 Outcome/benefits  
anticipated

Please 
delete as 
appropriate

If yes, please provide further information 
(numbers of jobs/homes or reason/justification)

2.2 Job creation/employment 
opportunities

Yes/no The scheme will safeguard the existing jobs in the 
museum and library. 

The scheme would create/safeguard construction jobs 
during construction phase.

An economic impact study as part of the detailed HLF bid 
would look at the job creation opportunities that would 
flow from the scheme itself once completed through 
encouragement of skills development/training.

2.3 New homes Yes/no

2.4 Improved community 
infrastructure to support 
sustainable communities

Yes/no Culture and cultural infrastructure plays a vital role in all 
successful cities and urban centres. Preston currently has 
limited cultural, arts and community infrastructure for a 
growing population.  This investment will ensure that the 
city has a high quality and fit for purpose cultural and 
community hub that can serve local communities and 
visitors alike.

The Harris is already a well-used organisation, receiving 
over 350,000 visits in 2017/2018.  The redevelopment 
will increase this usage to over 420,000.  The extensive 
consultation undertaken by the Harris during the last 
two years demonstrates the passion and pride the 
people of Preston have for the Harris.  An Ipsos Mori 
survey demonstrated that 88% of local residents 
recognised the building, and of those 84% had visited 
the Harris

3. Funding Requirements

Please provide an estimate of costs: £10.5m of 
which 
seeking a 
contribution 
of £1m from 
CIF

If a revenue scheme, could the scheme be capitalised? Yes/No

Will this scheme attract developer or other contributions, if yes please provide details.

Funding source (e.g. CIL, 
s106, other)

Amount of Funding Date Obtained / Other relevant 
information

Preston City Council 1m Cabinet Approved
Lancashire County Council 1m Cabinet approval will be sought in August
Arts Council 0.625m Expression of interest submitted

Page 23



Project Proposal for new City Deal Scheme

Heritage Lottery Fund 4.5m
UClan 0.5m
Trusts and Foundations 1m £110,000 (Harris Trust and EC Dickson legacy)
Local fundraising £0.875m

For Community infrastructure schemes the 
following operating principles apply

Answer Provide details

Is the project seeking approval to proceed prior 
to funds being collected?  Note: all commitments 
to expenditure (i.e. before funds are collected) 
will be approved by the Executive according to 
agreed criteria set out in the plan and detail to be 
agreed by the Programme boards and LCC's 151 
officer

Yes/No The Heritage Lottery Fund uses a two stage 
process for all large grants.  The Harris is about 
to submit a stage 1 bid which includes high 
levels concepts.  If successful (a decision will be 
made by HLF in December 2018) the Harris will 
have between 12-24 months to develop and 
submit a stage 2 bid which is expected to include 
a much higher level of detail.  The Harris expects 
to submit a Stage 2 bid in the summer of 2020. 

Is the scheme viewed as strategic, cross borough 
or of regional/sub regional significance?  E.g. 
cycle route, leisure facility?

Yes/No The Harris is widely viewed as one of the leading 
museums and galleries in the North West, and is 
the largest cultural organisation in Lancashire.  

Both the museum and library receive significant 
numbers of visits by South Ribble residents.  The 
museum also is regularly visited by audiences 
across Lancashire and the North West.  The 
investment will help further secure the sub 
regional and regional profile and impact of the 
Harris.

4. Deliverability of the scheme

4.1 How long is the scheme expected take to complete? Completion in 2023
4.2 Who will deliver the scheme? Preston City Council and Lancashire County 

Council 
4.3 Anticipated start date if approved Autumn 2021
4.4 Are there any other issues or risks associated with 

this scheme that you are aware of, 
Any key risks from the HLF risk assessment

4.5 Are planning or other consents anticipated for this 
scheme?

Scheme would require planning and listed 
building consents. Discussions are ongoing 
with Historic England in relation to the 
Listed Building consent.

4.6 Are there any communications considerations 
associated with this scheme?

The scheme is likely to generate a large 
amount of positive publicity if it goes ahead.

Date submitted to City Deal Executive and Stewardship Board: 16th August 2018
Decision:  Approved/not approved.
Details:

Page 24



Document is Restricted

Page 25

Agenda Item 10





Document is Restricted

Page 41





Document is Restricted

Page 43

Agenda Item 11





Document is Restricted

Page 47




	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the City Deal Executive meeting held on 19th February 2018
	3 Minutes of the City Deal Stewardship Board meeting held on 19th February 2018
	6 New Project Proposal - Re-Imagining the Harris Project
	Appendix A

	10 Homes England Quarterly Monitoring Progress Update - Q4 2017/18 and Q1 2018/19
	Appendix 1

	11 2018-21 Homes England Business and Disposal Plan (BDP)
	Annex 1


